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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The E. E. Cooley Building, originally constructed to house the John 
M. Stone Cotton Mill, is a large rectangular structure approximately 384 
feet long and 75 feet wide, not including an additional wing at the rear. 
The two-story brick building faces north from an elevated site approximately 
one mile west of the main campus of Mississippi State University, just with­ 
in the Starkville city limits. Its site slopes to the east, allowing the 
structure a third, ground floor level at the east end. The main entrance 
to the building is through a fanlit facade doorway in a square, four-story 
tower that originally housed a stairway and water tank. Placed west of 
center on the forty-five bay facade, the tower is embellished with cor­ 
belling which becomes progressively more elaborate towards the uppermost 
level, where corner pilasters and bull's-eye windows on all four surfaces 
complete the ornamentation.

Physical evidence and early photographs indicate that additions were 
probably made to the original mill building on at least three separate occa­ 
sions. The ten easternmost and five westernmost bays, as well as a wing 
which projects southward at the east end of the building, appear to have 
been additions to the original fabric, but there is no documentation which 
indicates exactly when any of these additions were made. A photograph of 
the mill published in 1913, however, pictures the tower more toward the east 
of the building as it existed then, evidently prior to the addition of the 
ten easternmost bays.

At a total cost (including purchase price) of $4.02 per square foot, 
the mill building was renovated in 19fy& for use by Mississippi State Uni­ 
versity's Physical Plant (maintenance) Department. Renovation work included 
the conversion of a portion of the total 107,558 square feet of floor space 
into business offices; the patching and repair, where necessary, of the 
three-inch, tongue-in-groove flooring; the splicing of some of the 16" x 18" 
structural beams to replace rotten sections; the removal of the stairway frou 
the tower; the sand-blasting of the exterior surface of the building to re­ 
move modern coats of white paint; and the laying of a special composition 
floor over the original wooden one so that it could withstand the abuse of 
heavy-duty equipment. Other minor alterations have further adapted the mill 
structure to its current function with minimal effect on its physical integ­ 
rity.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The E. E. Cooley Building now owned by Mississippi State University 
was designed by Stewart W. Cram/fir in 1902 as the John M. Stone Cotton Mill, 
named for former governor John''Mar shall Stone (1830-1900), who had been 
serving as the second president of Mississippi Agricultural and Mechanical 
College at the time of his death. Stone had been instrumental in the estab­ 
lishment of the Textile School which opened at A. & M. College in 1900, but 
the connections between its academic training program and the commercial 
venture represented by the mill extended beyond mere nomenclature.

Although the Stone Mill was neither constructed on the A. & M. campus 
nor supported with college funds, its early connection with the Textile 
School is undeniable. Arthur Whittam, the first director of the Textile 
School, resigned his position there to become the first president of the 
John M. Stone Cotton Mill, and the membership of the mill's founding board 
of directors consisted almost entirely of men with close ties to the college 
among them J. C. Hardy and R. C. King, the college's president and secretary 
respectively. Even the builder of the mill, W. T. Christopher of Columbus, 
was also responsible for a number of A. & M. College building projects dur­ 
ing the years immediately surrounding the construction of the Stone Mill.l 
There is some speculation that the mill may have obtained much of its ini­ 
tial equipment from the surplus of machinery which was enthusiastically 
donated to the new Textile School by northern manufacturing firms, and local 
tradition in Starkville contends that when the Textile School was finally 
disbanded in 1914, the milling machinery no longer needed by the college was 
loaded onto wagons and carted to the Stone Mill for continued service.^

In light of its early and close association with neighboring A. & M. 
College, it seems appropriate that the John M. Stone Cotton Mill, later op­ 
erated as the J. W. Sanders Cotton Mill,3. should have eventually become the 
property of the college's successor, Mississippi State University. The 
building continued ta function successfully as a textile mill under various 
ownerships until 19^2, and in 1965 it was purchased by the university and 
adapted to house that institution's physical plant department. The sen­ 
sitive and economical renovation^ of such a sizeable factory structure in 
order to suit the needs of a modern state university makes the present E. E. 
Cooley Building an exemplary instance of creative preservation through adap­ 
tive use.
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Mississippi. Laws of the State of Mississippi, Passed at a Regular Session

of the Mississippi Legislature Held in the City of Jackson Commencing
January 2, 1900, and Ending March 12, 1900. Jacksonville, Fla. : Vance
Printing Company, 1900.

Mississippi Department of Archives and History. Miscellaneous newspapers on 
microfilm. 1870-1902.
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(continued)

The E. E. Cooley Building of today also stands as a substantial and 
preserved material representative of an important phase in the economic h 
of Mississippi. In 1879, the Hinds County [Mississippi] Gazette confiden 
reported, "The cotton factory fever is just now engaging the attention of 
many southern towns." These communities were evidently seeking to profi 
nomically from processing their primary agricultural product on the home 
By 1900, largely due to legislative encouragement of textile as well as o 
manufacturing in Mississippi, newspapers statewide were filled with repo 
of the construction and expansion of local textile mills. The John M. St 
Cotton Mill/E. E. Cooley Building is a particularly important remnant of 
turn of the century wave of industrialization. It was almost certainly t 
of from its inception as a prototype for similar concerns throughout Miss 
because of its proximity to and close association with the state's profes 
training facility and the expertise that was gathered there. In the Draf 
Prospectus for the Stone Mill, printed in 1901, the advantages of this si 
tion are clearly pointed out in order to encourage potential stockholders 
invest in the concern:

Another advantage, and one which cannot be but conceded 
as of inestimable value to an enterprise of this de­ 
scription is the nearness to the State Textile School, 
where any information or advice can be had on short 
notice, and where experiments and tests of any de­ 
scription can be made for the mill free of any cost. . . . 
Such an institution is a source from which mills can 
obtain better superintendents, overseers, second hands, 
section hands, etc., etc., enabling them to turn out 
goods with some originality at a lower cost of production. 
Furthermore the proposed mill at this place would, whenever 
necessary, have at its disposal the advice of the Textile 
School instructors, all experienced mill men and specialists 
in their particular branch of the industry. This is an ad­ 
vantage many Northern towns have paid thousands of dollars
to secure.

FOOTNOTES

 '-Identity of architect, contractor, and board of trustees listed on 
original cornerstone, which is still in place on the facade of the buildi

^Recounted by the father of Charles P. Newell of Starkville (both fa 
and son were once managers of the mill).
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8. Significance (continued)

3 Mississippi State Rating Bureau, Report no. A-454, October, 1957:
"Starkville Mills, Inc. (Formerly J. W. Sanders Cotton Mill, Inc.), Starkville, 
Mississippi," Statewide Survey File, Mississippi Department of Archives and 
History, Jackson.

"Physical Description." 

^Raymond (Miss.) Hinds County Gazette, December 24, 1879.

"Mississippi, Laws of the State of Mississippi, Passed at a_ Regular Session 
of the Mississippi Legislature . . . 1900, pp. 50-51, 244-45.

^John M. Stone Cotton Mills, Draft Prospectus, Mississippi State University 
Archives, Starkville, Miss.
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